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he following is an account of events

which occurred in the Firth during
these years. Stretching inland for almost
20 miles from the Moray Firth to Ding-
wall, it is one of the best natural har-
bours in the British Isles. It was used as
an anchorage for many decades before
1900 by warships of the Royal Navy and
coastal shipping. The impressive cliffs
at either side of the entrance are known
as the North and South Sutor. Legend
thas it that at one time the entrance was
so narrow that two shoemakers or sutors,
one on ¢ach side, could throw a shoe-
maker’s last. which they shared, across
to each other when required.

During the early part of the last century
there were six ferries in use in the Firth
and now only one remains. A car ferry
from Cromarty to Nigg during the sum-
mer months, The ferries from Invergor-
i don to Cromarty and Balblair finished
during the 1970s at Alness, Foulis and
Dingwall. They finished when road
transport came on the scene. There were
old stone piers at Balintraid and Belli-
port near Dalmore. There were 4 grain
stores on the shores of the Firth at Al-
ness, Balintraid, Balblair and Foulis.
The latter has been renovated. Until the
1960s fishing for Kessock herring was
carried out during the season, annually,
by many fishing boats from Avoch,
This was a smaller type of herring pecu-
liar to the three Firths. Sadly, they have
disappeared from the area. They were
80 tasty,

Between 1900 and 1914 many large bat-
| tleships and cruisers were being built in
the shipyards of Britain and Germany
and many of the British warships being
built would arrive in the Cromarty Firth
in 1914 to form Admiral Jellicoe’s bat-
tleship and cruiser squadrons. In
1912/1913 war clouds were looming on
the horizon in Europe and preparations
for war were evident in the area. At that
time a new pier was being constructed
for the admiralty and the existing stone
piers, at Invergordon were being ex-
tended. Many oil fuel storage tanks
were being built at Seabank. Warships
were changing from coal to oil-burning.
The Firth was now designated as a naval
base and a King’s Harbour Master ap-
pointed. A new railway line was con-
structed between the local railway sta-
tion at Invergordon and the new Admi-
ralty pier.
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Around this time, dockyard vessels from
southern dockyards arrived in the Firth to
lay mooring buoys for warships, Many oil
tankers, laden with fuel oil from foreigh
parts, arrived at Invergordon to supply the
newly built storage tanks at Seabank., At
Cromarty. the very first seaplane base was
established to train naval pilots in the shel-
tered waters. Winston Churchill, then First
Lord of the Admiralty, on a visit to the Firth
on the admiralty yacht, began his flying
training there and gained *his wings’.

Around that time a company of Royal Ma-
rine artillery men arrived in Cromarty.
Their task was to prepare gun emplacements
in the north and south sutors for heavy ex-
naval guns which they would then man.
When the emplacements in the cliffs were
completed the huge guns were towed into
position by steam traction engines.

Winston Churchill who was on a further
visit to the Firth on the Admiralty vacht,
visited the sites when the guns were tested,

The Cromarty Firth was then the best de-
fended base in Britain at that time.

At the outbreak of war in 1914 there was
much activity ashore and afloat at Invergor-
don. Many dockyard ships were arriving, a
floating dock, cranes, repair ships etc.
Many warships were sailing north to the
Firth from southern ports. At the sutors an
anti-submarine boom was soon laid across
the entrance to the Firth. It had been con-
structed hurriedly at Inverness and towed
round to the sutors. It was constructed of
huge logs and steel rope.

Ashore, the existing small dockyard was
extended, new workshops, stores, etc. were
built in a short time, A huge camp was built
for the many dockyard workers who would
be arriving.

All private public houses in most of the
towns and villages around the Firth were
replaced by state-controlled public houses
and would remain that way until 1972,
when there were sold off.

On December 30th 1915 the armoured
cruiser HMS ‘Natal’ blew up at anchor in
the firth near Cromarty. 390 of the crew
and 10 civilians perished in the disaster. A
number of the crew are buried at Rosskeen
Cemetery in Invergordon.

In 1916, at the Battle of Jutland where the
huge British and German fleets clashed,

many of Admiral Jellicoe’s battleships from
the Firth took part and some returned to the
Firth, badly damaged, for repair and to land |
the wounded casualties at the newly built |
naval hospital. Some are buried at Rogs-
keen Cemetery. Jutland was the last battle
of the giant warships in the North Sea but
the cruisers and destroyers from the Firth
continued their sweeps and patrols in the
North Sea as German u-boats and surface
raiders were still active.

In 1917, after America came into the war,
the US Navy took over Dalmore Distillery
as a mine assembly base. A huge minefield
across the North Sea was planned. Several
US mine-layers arrived in the Firth for this
task and made use of the Admiralty Pier at
Invergordon.

During 1918 a new pier was under construc-
tion at Dalmore for the mine-layers but after
the war’s end it was abandoned. It was,
however, extended by the RAF, for use by
their marine craft in 1942 for the new base
at Alness.

During 1919, after the end of hostilities. the
naval base was quickly run down. Afloat
all the warships and auxiliary vessels re-
turned south to their home parts, as did the
floating dock and repair ships. Ashore, the
workers’ camps were closed and many hun-
dres of workers returned south., Many dock-
yard buildings were demolished or sold off, |
as was most of the Admiralty housing and
hospital. Only around 150 employees were
retained.

For most of WW1 there were large training
brigades of troops from Highland regiments
stationed at Invergordon, Cromarty and
Nigg. Convenient for the defence of the
base but primarily to provide replacements
for the horrendous number of casualities on
the western front.

During 1919, after the surrender of the Ger-
man fleet and the scuttling of their warships
at Scapa Flow, the skeleton crews were
taken down to the Cromarty Firth and
landed at Nigg, then marched to Nigg Rail-
way station where they entrained en route to
Germany. As there was a lot of anti-
German feeling at that time this quiet loca- |
tion was chosen to prevent incidents. |

In the 1920s and 1930s the Atlantic Fleet,
later named the Home Fleet, came north
annually in May and September for exer-
cises n the Moray Firth and arrived in the
firth at weekends to refuel, replenish and for
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recreation, | hey were welcome visilors
as they brought a lot of wade to the area.

It was a fantastic sight to see the fleet ar-
riving up the Firth in line astern, the flag -
ship leading and all the crews lining their
decks. They were followed by the de-
stroyver flotiflas and submarines heading
for the west anchorage. At night the Firth
was lit up like a city. The huge search

lights of the batileships sweeping the Firth

and shoreline.

In September 1931, the Atlantic Fleet at
anchor in the Cromarty Firth, mutinied
over pay cuts. It was more a strike than a
mutiny as there was no bloedshed, Some
of the crews of the warships disobeved
orders thus preventing the fleet sailing for
exercises. [t was afterwards called the
“Invergordon Mutiny” and it made head-
lines in every national newspaper, at-
fected the world's gold standard and sent

| shockwaves throughout the world, At this

time the British Navy was the policeman
of the world and was held in high esteem
everywhere,

In the aftermath heads did roll. Some
senior officers were placed on the retired

list and the ringleaders and trouble makers

discharged with services no longer re-
quired.

In 1937 war clouds were appearing on the
t horizon in Europe as they had done
| twenty-five years before and signs of

preparations for war could be seen in the
Firth. A new RAF station was con-
structed at Evanton. When completed it

was used by bomber squadrons from Eng-

land using the bombing range at Tain. It

was also used by planes from the aircraft

carriers of the fleet. The first aircraft car-
rier HMS “Argus’ arrived in the Firth in

(the early 1920s, using a field near Delny
| station for landings.

At Invergordon new oil fuel storage tanks
were being constructed for the Admiralty,

providing much needed employment lo-
icalfy. Invergordon was also to be a fly-

| ing-boat base and in 1938 several squad-
‘rons arrived in formation, After many

{ mooring buoys were laid in both East and
| West anchorages. a floating dock also ar-

rived.

lln 1938 work commenced on an under-

' ground oil fuel storage facility at Inchin-
down, in the hills behind Invergordon.
Tunnels and storage areas had to be
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drilled in solid rock. A pipe line to the
Admirally pier was also construcied,

In September 1939 the Home Fleet was
at anchor in the Firth and on the out-
break of WW2 made a hurried depar-
ture to their war station at Scapa Flow,
leaving the anti-aircrall cruiser HMS
Curlew for the defence of the base.

Although the Firth was not the promi-
nent fleet base it was in WWI, it was
still & very important base in WW2,
mainly for refuelling and a very busy
flving boat base. Many tankers came
and went and many destroyers and fleet
minesweepers arrived to refuel. There
was a flotilla of minesweepers, ex-
fishing trawlers, based there for sweep-
ing the Moray Firth of mines.

After the invasion scare in 1940, large
garrisons of troops were stationed in the
Orkney Islands, Shetlands and the

‘Faroes, Several troop carriers, ex-cross

channe] ferries were based in the Firth
to attend to their needs, leave parties.
replacements etc, and the army training
camp at Invergordon was used with
troop trains taking the service men to
southern parts, The base supplied most
the oil-fuel for the home fleet at Scapa
Flow and there was much sea traffic
between the two bases. Invergordon
was also the rail-head for all the stores
for the fleet. Many railway wagons ar-
rived at the pier daily and the stores
were loaded on to a fleet of storeships
all bound for Scapa. The rail-head was
shifted to Aberdeen in 1943 as the Piers
at Invergordon were required for land-
ing craft operations in preparation for
D-Day.

Although there were many air raids in
the earlier years at Scapa Flow there
was enly one raid in 1941 on the base at
Invergordon when a low flying German
Junkers 88 Bomber hit No. 13 oil stor-
age tank causing a huge spillage of
thick black fuel oil in the railway sta-
tion area and interrupting rail and road
traffic for several days. There were no
casualties,

During 1942/43 a new base for the RAT
was built at Alness with new slipways
for the Sunderland and Catalina flving
boats, and for several years, a Dutch
cross-channel ferry “$.5. Batavier” was
berthed at the Admiralty Pier to provide

accommadation for RAF flving boat cre
During the early days of the v
bly base and new pier was constructed at Nigg
along with a light raitway from the facility to
the pier for loading the mines ento the mine-
layers berthed there.

At nearby Nigg Bay from 1943-45 Barracuda
dive bombers from nearby RNAS Fearn used
this area for practice on targets enchored in the
shallow waters. In the last months of 1943
several flotillas of various types of landing
craft arrived at Invergordon loaded with tanks,
vehicles and troops. They made practice Jand-
Ings in preparation for D-Day in the Moray
Firth at Nairn and at Inver village area in
Easter Ross, the largest part of the Tarbat Pen-
insula having been evacuated for several
months in 1944,

As mentioned in Winston Churchill’s biogra-
phy “Road to Victory™ there was to have been
a “Big Three” meeting in the Cromarty Firth
in September 1944, Churchill. Roosevelt and
Stalin were to have arrived by warship and use
Balmoral Castle for their meetings. However,
Stalin called off as he was very much involved
with his generals in the huge batlles to drive
the Germans out of Russia.

After WW2 smaller fleet did retum annually
for exercises and battleships replaced by ais-
craft carriers and did so until the 1960s and |
were joined by Nato warships on many occa- |
sions. The last British battleship HMS
*“Vanguard” visited the Firth in the 1950s,
Shortly after WW2 the old wooden Admiralty
Pier was replaced by a new concrete facility
and completed in 1952, The old wooden pier
served the base well in two world wars,

In 1969/70 British Aluminium built a smelter
al Inverbreakie Farm and a new pier ar Salt-
burn. now used by the Port Authority, The
smelter closed in 1981 due to the high cost of
electricty. At Nigg in 1972 an oil rig vard was
built by the American firm Brown & Root. the
first rig constructed was launched in 1974,
The yard continued preduction until the 1990s,
It is now a rig repair vard.

In the 1980s Invergordon was officially closed
as a naval base and the pier, seabank oil-fuel
storage tanks. vard and buildings and the un-
derground storage facility at Inchindown were
all sold off. It was the end of a historic asso-
ciation with the Royal Navy for over 70 vears
as a naval base in the Cromarty Firth.
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CONTINUED PAGE 21 :

13



2.

OLD FILE

_.-"‘V‘ s
et

I
' g
R EE AN RNy s I
B eI Er E waygy f
: T pge

(i

British Legion Members with children who planted flowers at Fearn War Memorial, One of our story writers |
this issue, Donnie Hendry, is pictured back row 7th from left with dark jacket. His article on the Cromarty
Firth starts on pages 12-13 and finishes below.

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 13
I'believe it was in the late 1970s that the R.N.L 1. Lifeboat Sta-
Situated beside the oil rig yard at Nigg, an oil storage facility was tion was transferred from Cromarty to Invergordon. They now
built in the 1980s along with a new pier for oil tankers. Oil is have a powerful modern lifeboat and a capable volunteer crew.
piped to the terminal from the Beatrice Field, off the Caithness
coast 1o the terminal and then to the tankers at the piper for on-  In the 1980s a purpose built headquarters was built for the Cro-
ward shipment to the detinaries, marty Firth Port Authority adjacent to the piers and with a com-
manding view of the Firth. The authority is responsible for all
After completion of the first oil rig in 1974 at Nigg Yard, work  movements and berthing of oil rigs, liners and all other shipping
was started in the west pier area at Invergordon to construct arig  in the Firth and employs a large number of local staff.
repair base which has been extended over the years. In the 1980s
H.M. The Queen attended the opening of the Queen’s Dock and  Lying a short distance from the south Sutor, just inside the Firth
over the years many oil rigs and support vessels have used the is the Charming sea-side town of Cromarty much visited by the
facility, creating much employment locally. navy men from the warships in the nearby anchorage in days
gone by, They were welcome visitors to the town as they
Cruise liners began to visit Invergordon in the 1980s and these ~ brought much trade to the area. It had a busy harbour for coastal
massive vessels used the pipers for berthing and landing the tour- shipping and a thriving fishing industry in the 19th century when
ists. They travelled to places of interest by coach and then re- fish was in abundance in all the Firths. It was a busy lifeboat sta-
turned in the late afternoon to embark for their next port of call.  tion for many years and it also has the only lighthouse in the
The number of liners visiting the Firth has increased annually, Firth, located beside the harbour.
bringing much trade to the area. Donnie Hendry

STILL LOOKING FOR A LOCAL CALENDAR?

WE STILL HAVE SOME COPIES OF QUR 2015 CALENDAR WHICH FEATURES SCENIC VIEWS OF 4
TAIN & DISTRICT TAKEN BY LOCAL AMATEUR PHOTOGRAPHERS. IT IS PRICED AT £35.25. .
CALL US ON 01862 892072 FOR A COPY.




